ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 4, 2010
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Li nda Menard

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Hollis French
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 43
"An Act adding a second verse to the official Al aska state
song. "

Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED

SENATE BILL NO 212
"An  Act authorizing nunicipalities to designate energy
i nprovenents areas and to establish energy inprovenents programnms
and relating to those prograns.”

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 120
"An Act relating to an optional exenption from nunicipa
property taxes for residential property.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 232
"An Act relating to an optional nunicipal property tax exenption
for residential property.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 120

SHORT TITLE. MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THOVAS

02/ 20/ 09 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 20/ 09 (S) CRA, FIN

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2010



02/ 04/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 232
SHORT TITLE: MUNI Cl PAL RESI DENTI AL PROPERTY TAXES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) CRA, FIN
02/ 04/ 10 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR THOVAS

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 120.

JOE HARDENBROOK

Al de to Senator Thonmas

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information for SB 120.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 232.

GEORGE ASCOTT

Al de to Senator W el echowski

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information for SB 120

PATRI CK CARLSON, Director of Assessing
Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 232.

JOSEPH BLANCHARD, Assenbl yman
Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 120.

MARI E DARLI N

American Association of Retired Persons (AARP) Capital Gty Task
For ce

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 4, 2010



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 120 and SB 232.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Di vision of Community and Regional Affairs

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided Infornmation for SB 120 and SB 232.

MARTY MCGEE, Assessor/Property Appraisal D vision Manager
Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 120 and SB 232.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:35 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present
at the call order were Senators Thomas, Menard, Kookesh and
O son. He advised that the conmttee would postpone hearing SB
212 to allow the sponsor additional tinme for fine-tuning.

SB 120- MUNI CI PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON
SB 232- MUNI CI PAL RESI DENTI AL PROPERTY TAXES

3:32:15 PM
SENATOR COLSON announced the business to cone before the
commttee would be SB 120 and SB 232.

SENATOR THOMAS, sponsor of SB 120, said the bill does not
mandate any action, but gives nunicipalities the option to
increase the nunicipal property tax exenption for a private
resi dence from $20,000 to up to $100,000. He explained that 14
boroughs and 22 cities, with a conbined population of 590, 000,
| evy property taxes. He said the assessed value of residential
property in many communities has dramatically increased in
recent years and property taxes are skyrocketing. He reported
that the Fairbanks North Star Borough assenbly has repeatedly
asked the state Legislature to grant them the authority to
increase the residential property tax exenption. SB 120 would
not affect the snaller revenue-trapped communities' source of
tax income but would give those nunicipalities with a large
enough population the ability to relieve the tax burden |argely
borne by homeowners. SB 120 allows for l|ocal control in setting
the allowable exenption at any anount up to $100,000. Local
ordi nance would then require voter approval before enactnent. He
expl ai ned that sonme people feel that allowing nunicipalities the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2010



option of raising the residential property tax exenption would
result in imrediate adoption in every city and borough that
collects property tax. However, since an initial $20,000
exenption went into effect in 2004, only six of the 36
muni ci palities that collect property tax utilize the optional
exenption and only two utilize the exenption to its naximm
anount . An i ncreased al | owabl e exenption woul d hel p
muni ci palities diversify their inconme base and respond to the
needs of citizens struggling under rising energy costs.

3:35:34 PM
SENATOR MENARD said that the sponsor statenent in front of her
said "12 cities" but that Senator Thomas said "22 cities."”

JOE HARDENBROOK, staff to Senator Thomas, said "22 cities" is
correct.

CHAIR OLSON said the conmttee would hear SB 232 before opening
public testinony for both SB 120 and SB 232.

3:36:40 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEBKI, sponsor of SB 232, said it is simlar to
SB 120 but with a few mnor differences. He said assenbly
menbers and people in the Anchorage Mayor's office have told him
that the current law could apply to renters so Tam Cook
[Director, Legal Services] helped put a provision in SB 232 to
clarify. He said the exenption anmount specified in SB 232,
$50,000, is lower than the ampunt in SB 120 but he would not
object to a higher anobunt. He enphasized that this is an
optional program Even if SB 232 passes, it does not provide tax
relief but gives |local comunities another tool to help
residents.

3:39:13 PM

SENATOR COLSON said if one segnent of the comunity gets an
exenption, other taxes will go higher or other people wll pay
nor e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said ultimately that is what would happen

it is a reshuffling. He said SB 232 would be subjected to many
steps including approval by the |egislature, voter approval in
the local community and passage of an ordinance by the |ocal
assenbl y. Some feel that the residential tax burden is high
conpared to the burden paid by others. He pointed out that the
$20, 000 tax exenption, voted on in 2004, passed overwhel m ngly
in Anchorage in spite of heavy opposition.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2010



SENATOR MENARD asked how many nunicipalities support this and
asked specifically about the Matsu Borough.

GEORGE  ASCOIT, staff to Senator W el echowski, said the
muni ci pal ity of Fairbanks has requested the option for increased
property tax exenption while the nunicipality of Anchorage
recently rejected it as a public option; it is a local control
issue. He did not have further nunbers but said he would find
out if other nunicipalities have a position.

SENATOR MENARD asked how other tax payers would be affected if
one or nore types of residential properties are exenpted or
partially exenpted.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he cannot speak for other communities,
however in Anchorage the people who get exenptions pay |ess and
the people who do not get those exenptions pay nore. |In
Anchorage, «current Jlaw allows a 10 percent property tax
reduction up to $20,000. He said he hopes Anchorage would
increase the percentage to 20 or 25 percent and put a vote
before the people to increase the anount to $50, 000.

3:42: 36 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said the exenption is basically paid for by
t he people who are not subject to the exenption.

SENATOR THOVAS asked how the Change in Revenue anount on the
fiscal note for SB 232, just under $1 mllion, was deduced. He
asked i f it reflects approval by muni ci palities and
i npl ementation to the full anount.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he can guarantee that the exenption
woul d not cost $903,000 in fiscal year 2011 because the fisca
note assunes every comunity will allow this exenption up to the
maxi mum He said only six or seven nmnunicipalities have taken
advantage of this tax exenption and only two have done so to the
maxi mum amount. It is difficult to estimte an exact anount, but
$903,000 is a very high nunber. Under AS 43.56, it is a cost
shifting agreenent on how you tax oil and gas properties.

3:45:19 PM
SENATOR THOMAS reiterated that only two nunicipalities use the
exenption at its maxi num anount of 20 percent. Sone

muni ci palities use 10 percent, others use a percent of a percent
and sone use a flat rate. The other 21 or 22 nunicipalities do
not do any tax exenption.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2010



CHAIR (OLSON asked if muni ci palities have insurnmountable
i nhi bitions about going to the nmaxi mum anount.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he does not know why some comrunities
have chosen not to go to the full amount. He said the bulk of
the loss would be in comunities that do not have the tax
exenption at all. For exanple, he did not think that that Val dez
and the North Slope Borough, which have a have a huge anmount of
oil and gas tax structures or properties, take advantage of the
property tax exenption. He reiterated that the fiscal note is
very high

CHAIR OLSON said a fiscal note of alnpbst $1 mllion did catch
the conmttee's attention. He asked who is opposing SB 232.

3:47:12 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said the Building Omers and Managers
Association (BOVA) in Anchorage opposes SB 232 out of concern
that it could cost-shift taxes onto them The National Tax
Payers League of Anchorage and the Al aska Manufactured Housi ng
Associ ati on have expressed opposition. He explained that it is
the people who mght expect to pay slightly higher taxes who
oppose SB 232, however; he reiterated that SB 232 does not
i npose or increase taxes but gives comrunities the ability to
put the exenption before the |ocal assenblies and voters.

3:48: 50 PM
CHAI R OLSON opened public testinony for both SB 120 and SB 232.

PATRI CK CARLSON, Director of Assessing, Fairbanks North Star
Borough (FNSB), testified on behalf of the Mayor and the
adm nistration in support of SB 232. He said it is in the
community's best interest to vote on this optional tax
exenption. He said the borough believes strongly in |[ocal
control and that issues need to be crafted to the population's
needs and desires. He explained that many boroughs don't have a
property tax but may have a wide variety of taxes on vehicles,
aircraft, sales, business equipnent, etc. FNSB has only a
property tax and does not have the levy on the business and
comercial side that other jurisdictions have.

3:51:16 PM

MR. CARLSON said FNSB has studied the shifting on the tax roll
and the inevitable shifting from residential to comrercia
property. He said FNSB' s best estimate was that the 20 percent
up to $50,000 cap rate is a shift of $200,000 across the tax
roll of $7 billion. Enployees and business owners who are also

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2010



homeowners woul d benefit from the honeowners exenption neant to
foster honmeowner shi p. He explained that historically, the
exenption was $10,000 but that was a percentage of the nedian
hone val ue. Today, $50,000 is conparable to that percentage of a
medi an honme value. He expressed the opinion that this tax
exenption would return balance to the system and should be an
option for jurisdictions and voters to consider.

3:53:22 PM
SENATOR OLSON understood that M. Carlson was supporting SB 232
but asked about SB 120.

MR CARLSON said he is in support of an increase in the
exenption consistent with the ballot initiative of $50, 000.

SENATOR OLSON asked if M. Carlson was "lukewarn or opposed to
SB 120.

MR. CARLSON said he is in support of increasing the exenption
amount and the FNSB feels the $50,000 exenption seens to be the
best one.

JOSEPH BLANCHARD, Assenblyman with FNSB, said he signed up to
support SB 120, but the ballot option for SB 232 is extrenely
attractive. He said |ocal governnents need options and
flexibility, especially in hard economc times, to help their
citizen base.

SENATOR OLSON asked M. Blanchard if he is in favor of SB 120
and SB 232.

MR. BLANCHARD said he would consolidate them he would put the
$100,000 in SB 120 with the ballot initiative.

3:56: 11 PM

MARI E DARLIN, AARP, Capital City Task Force, supported both SB
120 and SB 232. She said the bills allow rmunicipalities the
option of providing a little nore support to people aged 50 and
ol der who pay these taxes.

3:57:15 PM
CHAI R OLSON cl osed public testinony.

3:57:24 PM
At Ease until 3:58 p.m

3:58: 06 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2010



SENATOR THOVMAS asked M. Van Sant, who was on-line for
guestions, how he arrived at the change in revenue for the
fiscal notes of SB 120 and SB 232.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Division of Comunity and
Regi onal Affairs, replied that the fiscal note was calcul ated
according to the current practices of each nunicipality that
contains "4356 property,” which is how oil and gas property is
| abel ed. These nunicipalities are Valdez, Fairbanks, Kenai,
North Sl ope and Anchorage. Anchorage has set a 10 percent up to
$20, 000 exenption, Fairbanks has set a 20 percent up to $20, 000
exenption, Valdez has set a 30 percent up to $20,000 exenption
and Kenai has a flat $20,000 exenption with no percentage.

He explained that the calculations for SB 120 and SB 232 were
based on these percentages. For exanple, the new calculation for
Fai rbanks would be the same 20 percent, but up to $50,000. The
fiscal note was not calculated according to every borough
applying the maxi num exenption, but rather according to each
borough's current use of the current program

4:01: 00 PM

MARTY  MCGEE, Muni ci pal Assessor, Anchorage, reported that
Anchorage assenbly mnmenbers have expressed the feeling that
shifting taxes is not the solution to Anchorage's tax problens
and the assenbly chose not to put forward a ballot proposition
He said every community's tax base is different, but the result
of exenpting property values is an increased tax rate for
remai ning tax payers. In Anchorage, only 50 percent of
residential tax payers currently qualify for the exenption; an
i ncreased exenption would inpact nore than just comerci al
property owners.

SENATOR OLSON asked if he is in favor of the increased
exenpti on.

MR. MCGEE said he is not taking a position for or against SB 120
and SB 232, but is just conmenting on the potential inpact of
i npl enmentation in Anchor age.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if Anchorage is considering another form of
tax as being nore appropriate.

4:03: 25 PM

MR. MCCGEE replied that the conmmunity is debating inplenentation
of a different form of tax, but no decisions have been made. The

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2010



assenbly and the adm nistration have reduced the budget by $10
mllion, reducing tax revenue requirenents.

SENATOR THOVAS wondered if a better solution was foreseeable in
the future.

MR MCCGEE replied that neither the admnistration nor the
assenbly has taken a stance on an alternative form of revenue.

CHAIR OLSON asked M. Van Sant what effect SB 120 or SB 232
woul d have on the North Slope Borough or the Northwest Arctic
Bor ough.

MR. VAN SANT replied that the increased tax exenptions would
have no effect on the Northwest Arctic Borough and that the
nunbers in the North Slope Borough are small due to the anount
of locally assessed property. He explained that the fiscal note
only addresses oil and gas revenue and that the calculations
show a raised requirenent from oil and gas properties from
$76,000 to $185,000 on the $50,000 exenption and from $76,000 to
$272,000 on the $100,000 exenption. The total effect is not very
|arge for the North Sl ope Borough considering a total tax base
of about $11 billion.

CHAIR OLSON asked if M. Van Sant thought those boroughs would
not be in favor of either SB 120 or SB 232.

4. 06: 05 PM

MR. VAN SANT said he cannot speak for the boroughs. He said
Nort hwest Arctic Borough probably would not have a position
since it does not levy a property tax and the North Sl ope
Borough m ght be in favor of it.

CHAIR OLSON said he would keep the public hearing for SB 120 and
SB 232 open and keep the bills in conmittee.

4:06: 53 PM
There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair O son adjourned the neeting at 4:06 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -9- February 4, 2010



